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Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

1 General Does the District have an estimated 
contract award date? 

The estimated award date is February 2021. 

2 C.3.1.4.5 “During the term of the contract, the 
Contractor shall provide one (1) office 
and one (1) cubicle, at the Primary 
Operations Facility for use by 
authorized CSSD staff and auditors for 
observing and monitoring the 
Contractor’s operations.” 

Please confirm whether the District 
requires one office in addition to one 
cubicle for use by CSSD staff. 

The District requires one cubicle for use by 
CSSD Staff. 

3 C.3.1.5.1.b “Provides the ability to modify IT 
system operations to adapt to any new 
programmatic changes in DCCSES or 
a new automated data processing 
system” 

Are there currently any changes 
planned for DCCSES that impact the 
SDU Contractor? If yes, can the 
District identify planned changes and 
the timeframe for those changes? 

DCCSES is a legacy system and is in the 
process of being modernized.  While there are 
no "planned" changes that impact the 
contractor, the need for changes cannot be 
ruled out.  Phased changes to the system have 
already begun and will continue into 2021. 

4 C.3.1.5.1.g “Maintain compliance with the 
applicable system security 
requirements described in C.3.3.4.” 

Confirmed. The cross reference should be to 
section C.3.4. 



  

 

  
 

Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

Will the District confirm that the C.3.3.4 
section reference should be C.3.4? 

5 C.3.3.1 and 
L.19.1 

These sections vary somewhat with 
regard to required key personnel 
positions. Can the District clarify the 
key personnel positions required for 
the Contractor?  

If by required they are referring to on-site 
personnel then Project Director, Customer 
Service Manager and IT Manager. 

6 C.3.3.4.e “Staff training and development 
(C.3.5.2.6).” 

Will the District confirm that the 
C.3.5.2.6 section reference should be 
C.3.3.6? 

Confirmed.  The cross reference should be to 
section C.3.3.6. 

7 C.3.5.1.c “Assistance to employers, interstate 
agencies, state child support 
personnel, CSSD personnel, payors or 
their legal representatives regarding 
receipt and disbursement information 
via a toll free telephone number 
available twenty-four hours per day, 
seven days per week;” 

Is it the District’s intention that the 
Contractor provide an IVR to meet this 
requirement, or will the district 
continue to provide its IVR for this 
purpose? 

The contractor is not required to provide an 
IVR to meet this requirement.  The intent is to 
ensure that appropriate assistance is available 
to all stakeholders. 
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Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

8 C.3.9.5 For the Section C.3.2.7.1.3.1 
reference, will the District confirm that 
the timeframe for researching and 
resolving returned disbursement 
checks should be within one (1) 
business day of receipt, consistent 
with the standard stated on page 34 of 
the RFP? 

Yes, the timeframe for Section C.3.2.7.1.3.1 is 
correct. 

9 L.2 “L.2.1 This solicitation will be 
conducted electronically. To be 
considered, an offeror must submit the 
required proposal, certifications and 
attachments to 
OAG.BusinessOpportunities@dc.gov 
before the closing date and time. 
Paper, telephonic, telegraphic, and 
facsimile proposals may not be 
accepted. 

L.2.2 All attachments shall be 
submitted as a .pdf file. The District will 
not be responsible for corruption of 
any file submitted. If the submitted file 
cannot be viewed and printed as 
submitted, it will not be considered. 

L.2.3 The offeror shall submit in its 
electronic submittal: (1) a technical 
proposal, (2) a price proposal, and (3) 

In recognition that the individually submitted 
files may be too large for email transmission 
(i.e. not in a Zip folder), we are looking into an 
alternate method for offerors to electronically 
submit proposal responses.  Further 
information will be made available in a 
subsequent amendment. 



  

 

  
 

Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

all required certifications and 
attachments.” 

Is there a limit on the file size for email 
submissions? If yes, what is the size 
limit? May proposal submission be 
completed through multiple emails? 

10 L.2.4.1.A.ii  “The technical proposal shall include a 
response to, at minimum, the following 
tasks and subtasks outlined in the 
Statement of Work (Section C):” 

Sections C.3.2.2 Process Child 
Support Payments, C.3.9 Performance 
Standards, C.3.10 Meetings, and 
C.3.12 Turnover Plan are not included 
in the list of minimum tasks and 
subtasks to be included in the 
technical proposal. Can the District 
clarify if any of these omitted 
tasks/subtasks should be addressed in 
the technical proposal? 

 

 

 

 

 

Section C.3.2.2 should be addressed in 
conjunction with all tasks under C.3.2. See the 
second row of the table in L.2.4.1.A.iii 

On-going 

Operations 

(C.3.2) 

The Offeror shall describe the 

software it proposes to use to 

collect and process payments, 

including system capabilities and 

functionality.  The Offeror shall 

provide a flowchart(s) of the overall 

processes to manage and track child 

support payments. 

Section C.3.9 should be addressed in 
conjunction with Quality Assurance.  See the 
table in L.2.4.1.A.ii. 

Quality 

Assurance 

(C.3.8) 

The Offeror shall provide its proposed 

Quality Assurance Plan.  The Offeror 

shall describe the methodology it will 

use to ensure achievement of the 

performance standards listed in C.3.9. 
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Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

Section C.3.10 and C.3.12 should be 
addressed in conjunction with the offeror’s 
project management approach.  Refer to 
L.2.4.1.B.iv. 

11 L.2.4.1.A.ii The Staffing and Training requirement 
includes reference to subtask C.3.3.6. 
Should this section of the response 
minimally address all of task C.3.3 
Staff, Organization, and 
Supervision, including all subtasks 
(i.e., C.3.3.1 through C.3.3.6)? 

The offeror shall address all requirements in 
section C.3.3.6 (C.3.3.6.1 through C.3.3.6.3). 

12 L.4.1.3 “It is solely the offeror's responsibility 
to ensure that it begins the upload 
process in sufficient time to get the 
attachments submitted before the 
closing time.” 

Are there files that must be uploaded 
in some manner in addition to the 
email submission required by Section 
L.2? If additional uploads are required, 
can the District provide instructions for 
accomplishing required uploads? 

See response to Question 9. 

13 C.3.2.1.1.2.a, 
page 25 

How many post office boxes are in 
place today? Are the post office boxes 
vendor owned or District owned? If 
more than one post office box, please 

There are four (4) PO boxes in place. They are 
owned by the vendor.  NCP Payments, 
Employer Payments, Interstate Payments and 
Specialty Payments. 



  

 

  
 

Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

provide what type of mail is sent to 
each box. 

14 C.3.2.1.1.2.a. What is the address of the post office 
where the currently established post 
office boxes are located? 

The address is 2 Massachusetts Ave NE, 
Washington DC 20002. 

15 C.3.2.1.1.2.b, 
page 25 

Could the District provide a copy of the 
current mail pick up schedule? What is 
the earliest time the mail is available at 
the post office? Please provide the 
average daily incoming volume of 
envelopes picked up each day of the 
week at the post office.  Please 
provide the average peak volume of 
envelopes received on a high volume 
processing day (e.g. day after a 
holiday, beginning of a month). Where 
is the location of the current post 
office? 

Unfortunately, the current mail pick-up 
schedule is impacted by COVID and has no 
impact on what the future schedule should be.  
The District’s focus and tracking is based on 
“processed dollar amounts” by day of the 
week. For example (based on dollar amounts) 
Tuesday @ 34% is the highest processing day 
for paper receipts while Wednesday @ 25% is 
the highest processing day for electronic 
receipts. 

16 C.3.2.1.1.2.f, 
page 25 

Please provide the average volume of 
mail items that are received, sorted 
and forwarded to CSSD/Court on a 
daily/monthly basis for the last 12 
months. 

The majority of items intended for CSSD but 
received by the contractor consists of 
“information” included with payments.  Neither 
the volume nor consistency of these instances 
is routine, therefore, there is no formal monthly 
tracking of the numbers by the District.  Any 
mail items for the court have been very 
minimal, only occasionally. 
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Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

17 C.3.2.1.1.3, 
page 25 

For checks received at CSSD, who is 
responsible for depositing the checks 
into the depository bank? Does the 
CSSD accept cash payment? What is 
the average number of payments 
received at the CSSD on a daily 
basis? 

The contractor is responsible for depositing 
checks into the bank. No, CSSD does not 
accept cash payments.  Payments are not 
received at CSSD on a daily basis, thus there 
is no daily average.  Sometimes, payments are 
forwarded to CSSD from the court or mailed to 
CSSD instead of to the contractor. Periodically 
CSSD may offer amnesty programs or case 
specific opportunities which may allow for 
paper payments to be received at the CSSD 
Office. 

18 C.3.2.2.3  Volumes received via ACH Credit, 
Debit (originated via web), Credit and 
Debit Card, and any other categories 

See C.2.4.2 Volume, Page21 

19 C.3.2.2.3 Volume of work related to ACH/EFT 
services 

See C.2.4.2 Volume, Page21 

20 C.3.2.2.6.1, 
page 29 

Please provide the average number of 
foreign currency payment received at 
the SDU for processing on a monthly 
basis for the last 12 months. 

Between two (2) and five (5) payments per 

month. 

 

21 C.3.2.2.7, 
page 29 

Please provide the number of 
forged/fraudulent items received on a 
monthly basis for the last 12 months.   

Neither the volume nor consistency of these 
instances is routine, therefore, there is no 
formal monthly tracking of the numbers.   

22 C.3.2.3.2.a, 
page 30 

Please provide the document storage 
retention requirements for retaining the 

All services must be provided in accordance 
with the applicable laws and regulations.  See 



  

 

  
 

Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

paper financial instruments and source 
documents. 

C.1.1 Applicable Documents (Document No. 
14) 

23 C.3.2.4.1, 
page 30 

Could the District provide a sample of 
the quarterly notice? Please provide 
the quarterly volume of notices 
produced for the last 36 months? 

A sample is not available.  For the last four 
quarters, a total of 34,500 notices were 
produced for an average of 8,625 notices per 
quarter. 

24 C.3.2.4.1 Please provide the paper size, 
envelope size, average number of 
pages per multi-page notice printed, 
single or duplex printing, black and 
white or color printing and other 
specifications for the quarterly notice 
printing production and distribution 

Based on IT requirements, the paper size is 8 
½ x 11, black & white, a multi-page notice 
could be up to 3 pages. 

25 C.3.2.4.1.1.f, 
page 30 

Please confirm whether the postage 
costs associated with the quarterly 
notice mailing is a pass through cost to 
the District. 

Postage costs is not a pass-through cost. 

26 C.3.2.4.2, 
page 30 

How many times has the District 
requested ad hoc notice mailings 
within the last 3 years? Are the ad-hoc 
notices generated and mailed 
separately from the quarterly notices? 
Please confirm whether the postage 
costs associated with the ad hoc 
notices is a pass through cost to the 
District. 

There have been no ad hoc mailings within the 
last 3 years. Yes, any ad-hoc notices would be 
generated and mailed separately. Postage cost 
is not a pass-through cost. 
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# 

RFP Section Question Response 

27 C.3.2.5.1, 
page 30 

Could the District elaborate on what is 
expected of the SDU to assist with on-
going cleanup of DCCSES data?  
Please provide how many requests for 
DCCSES data cleanup have been 
initiated monthly within the last 12 
months?    

In line with a commitment of excellence the 
district expects that the contractor will provide 
recommendations for services and /or 
processes related to the operation of the SDU 
that will enhance the effectiveness and 
efficiency of the unit. 

28 C.3.2.5.2, 
page 30 

Please provide the volume of employer 
file maintenance requests received 
and processed monthly within the last 
12 months. 

During the last 12 months no employer file 
maintenance request were submitted.  
Sometimes information reaches the contractor 
instead of the CSSD office; in those instances, 
the contractor will process them.   

29 C.3.2.5.3.1, 
page 30 

Please provide the volume of new 
custodial parent and employment 
status change requests received and 
processed monthly within the last 12 
months.  Please confirm whether the 
requirement should read non-custodial 
parent employment status changes vs 
custodial parent. 

Yes, the requirement should read “Non-
Custodial Parent”.  A monthly volume is not 
available; change requests are a result of 
circumstances.  Sometimes information 
reaches the contractor instead of the CSSD 
office; in those instances, the contractor will 
process them.   

30 C.3.2.5.3.2, 
page 30 

Please provide the volume of mail 
suppression requests received and 
processed monthly within the last 12 
months. 

None 

31 C.3.2.7.1.1 Is the Contractor responsible for the 
cost of postage for the check mailings? 

Yes 



  

 

  
 

Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

32 C.3.2.7.2.3.2 Volume of work related to Debit Card 
Program Plan. Also, specifically what 
does the District expect in terms of: 

- Maintain the existing debit card 
program? AND 

- If the Contractor proposes an 
alternative debit card program, the 
program must minimally include all 
elements of the existing program 
including marketing, customer 
transition, implementation, and 
maintenance of the program - What 
are all the elements of the existing 
program card (fees etc)? 

Realistically the District expects the contractor 
to provide an option for Custodial Parents to 
take advantage of a Debit Card to receive their 
payments.  We expect that the contractor will 
promote the use of electronic receipt of 
payments via Direct Deposit or Debit Card.  
The intent is to continue to improve the 
percentage of electronic disbursements.  In line 
with a commitment of excellence, the District 
expects that the contractor will provide 
recommendations for services and /or 
processes related to the operation of the SDU 
that will enhance the effectiveness and 
efficiency of the unit. 

33 C.3.2.8.1 What is the District’s current procedure 
for recoveries for incorrect postings 
and payment processing errors? 

Procedures differ depending on the 
circumstances that resulted in the error.  In line 
with the contractor’s experience and best 
practices, the District expects  
recommendations and /or processes to be 
included in their  plans that will minimize this 
type of error on the contractor’s part.  For 
contractor errors, the contractor is required to 
provide the funds and properly apply them to 
the case. 

34 C.3.2.8.1 Volume of work related to misapplied 
payments 

In instances where volume nor consistency is 
routine, there is no formal monthly tracking of 
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# 

RFP Section Question Response 

the numbers.  Resolution is addressed 
immediately on a case by case basis.   

35 C.3.2.8.1 What is the current recoupment 
percentage? 

Such instances where volume nor consistency 
is routine, there is no formal monthly tracking 
of the numbers.  Resolution is addressed 
immediately on a case by case basis. 

36 C.3.2.8.1 Does the District foresee any changes 
to its current District procedures for 
recoveries? 

No 

37 C.3.2.8.1 Does the District foresee any changes 
to its currently allowed Contractor 
procedures for recoveries? 

No 

38 C.3.2.8.2 Volume of work related to Insufficient 
Funds 

In line with the contractor’s experience and 
best practices, the District expects 
recommendations and/or processes to be 
included in their plans that will address this 
area. Such instances where volume nor 
consistency is routine, there is no formal 
monthly tracking of the numbers.  Resolution is 
addressed immediately on a case by case 
basis. 

39 C.3.2.8.3 Volume of work related to Rejected 
Electronically Disbursed Payments 

In line with the contractor’s experience and 
best practices, the District expects 
recommendations and/or processes to be 
included in their plans that will address this 
area.  Such instances where volume nor 



  

 

  
 

Question 
# 

RFP Section Question Response 

consistency is routine, there is no formal 
monthly tracking of the numbers.  Resolution is 
addressed immediately on a case by case 
basis. 

40 C.3.2.8.4 Volume of work related to 
Disbursement Account Reconciliation 
Procedures 

In line with the contractor’s experience and 
best practices, the District expects 
recommendations and/or processes to be 
included in their plans that will address this 
area. 

41 C.3.5.1, page 
44 

Please provide the volume of incoming 
calls, and call types, received on 
daily/monthly basis for the last 36 
months.  Is the customer service toll 
free number owned by the District? 
Will the new vendor be required to 
maintain the existing toll free phone 
number? Please confirm whether it is a 
mandatory requirement to record 
customer service calls. If so, what is 
the retention period to keep recorded 
calls? 

The contractor will be required to provide a 
toll- free phone number specifically for the 
SDU.  The SDU addresses calls from 
employers, NCPs, CP’s and other stakeholders 
regarding “payment processing” issues.   
Currently approximate 700 calls per month are 
received.  It is not mandatory to record 
customer service calls. 

42 C.3.5.51 What is the average length (# of 
minutes) per call handled by the 
customer service unit? 

1 ½ - 2 minutes 

43 C.3.3.4 Could the District provide the current 
SDU operation’s staffing including 

The District expects that a contractor’s plans 
will be based on the Volumes provided; the 
capabilities of their proprietary system, and 
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numbers/full time equivalent % by 
position title? 

their experience operating a SDU to address 
the requirements of this proposal. 

44 C.3.5.2.c, page 
45 

Please provide the number of FTEs 
currently assigned to handling the 
customer service calls. 

The District expects that a contractor’s plans 
will be based on the Volumes provided; the 
capabilities of their proprietary system, and 
their experience operating a SDU to address 
the requirements of this proposal. 

45 C.3.7.1 Would an SSAE No, 18 SOC 1, Type I 
audit suffice for this requirement? 

Yes 

46 C.3.9 Has the current Contractor been 
accessed any Performance Standards 
penalties during its contract? If so, 
please provide the Performance 
Standard(s) failed and the 
corresponding dollar amount(s) 
assessed by year. 

That information is not available. 

47 General Could the District provide a copy of the 
current Contractor’s SDU contract 
including all amendments and pricing? 

See the attachments to this amendment for a 
copy of the current contract and modifications. 

48 General Could the District provide copies of the 
last twelve months of the current 
Contractor’s SDU service invoices? 

Invoices will not be provided. 

49 Section B.5 
and Section 
H.9 

Does the current SDU contract have a 
subcontracting requirement?  If so, is it 
the same requirement? If not, please 

No, the current contract does not contain a 
subcontracting requirement. 
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RFP Section Question Response 

provide subcontracting requirements 
for the current SDU contract. 

50 B.5 and H.9 Would the District please clarify the 
percent of the dollar volume of the 
contract to be subcontracted to 
qualified small business enterprises 
(SBEs)?  

Section B.5 of the above mentioned 
solicitation states, “For contracts in 
excess of $250,000, at least 15% of 
the dollar volume of the contract shall 
be subcontracted in accordance with 
section H.9 (emphasis added). Section 
H.9.1.1 states, “For all contracts in 
excess of $250,000, at least 35% of 
the dollar volume of the contract shall 
be subcontracted to qualified business 
enterprises (SBEs) (emphasis added).” 
The following sections also reference 
35%: 

a. H.9.1.2 

b. H.9.1.4 

c. H.9.1.5 

d. H.9.1.6 

e. H.9.2 Subcontracting Plan 

The subcontracting requirement for this 
procurement is 15%. The percentage in section 
H should also read 15%. 
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f. Attachment J.8 Subcontracting 
Plan 

51 Subcontracting Can the agency consider reducing 
35% MBE/WBE goal on the entire 
value of this contract to a more typical 
5%-10% program goals against the 
value of the work performed in the 
state/District, and remove the 
requirement completely on any work 
that is performed remotely? 

The subcontracting requirement for this 
procurement is 15%. 

52 C.2.4.2 Does the Disbursed Items Processed, 
Paper include the quarterly notices 
produced and distributed to custodial 
parents?  If so, please provide a 
breakout. 

No, it does not include the quarterly notices 
produced and distributed to custodial parents 

53 C.2.4.2 Could the District provide a breakout of 
the transaction item types within Paper 
and Electronic for both the Incoming 
Items Processed and the Disbursed 
Items Processed (paper check, money 
order, ACH/EFT, direct deposit, debit 
card, etc.) 

No, a breakdown is not available. 

54 C.3.1.4.1 Does the current Contractor provide a 
single site, within a fifteen minute 
subway stop radius of One Judiciary 
Square, no more than four blocks from 
access to Metro bus or rail, and within 

Yes 
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# 

RFP Section Question Response 

the District of Columbia’s geographic 
boundaries for the sole purpose of 
performing the collection and 
disbursement function in accordance 
with this contract? 

55 Proposal Due 
Date 

To provide for open and competitive 
procurement, would the agency please 
extend the proposal due date to allow 
for 8 week time period with at least a 4 
week timeframe between the date that 
answers are published when proposals 
are due. 

The due date for submission of proposals has 
been extended to October 23, 2020. 

56 Implementation 
Timeline 

To provide for open and competitive 
procurement, and in consideration of 
the exigent circumstances 
(international pandemic) that are 
unlikely to be drastically different in 
early 2021, would the agency please 
revise the requirement and allow a five 
month implementation timeline. 

The implementation timeline remains 
unchanged. 

57 Proposal 
Submission 

Must vendors submit both an a 
complete original and an alternative 
proposal as described in L2.5; or can 
contractors submit only one proposal 
that is an alternative? 

Offerors must submit a completed original 
proposal to be considered.  That proposal 
must include the required subcontracting 
plan. 

 

Offerors can choose to submit an alternative 
proposal. 
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58 Performance 
Bond 

As far as a Performance bond 
requirement, we suggest that with 
service level or performance goals and 
associated penalties is an effective 
way to manage performance.  A 
performance bond increases the cost 
for services as the cost of the bond is 
passed on in the fixed/transaction cost 
to the District. We also suggest that 
Bidders should be required to disclose 
any/all previous performance penalties 
assessed by any of their SDU 
customers or any contract terminations 
for performance related issues, 
specifically in their proposals. 

There is no requirement for a performance 
bond. 

59 C.3 For requirement C.3 would the agency 
please change the requirement for the 
Contractor to have a minimum of Five 
(years) of experience operating at 
least 3 different SDU’s as the prime 
contractor. 

The requirement remains unchanged. 

60 G.3 Please confirm under G.3 and H 
regarding the compliance rate for 
hiring existing 51% District Residents 
using First Source is only reported 
and/or waived upon vendors’ final 
request for payment under the 

Please refer to the Department of Employment 
Services website for reporting requirements 
under the program. 

 

https://does.dc.gov/page/first-source-employment-

program- 

https://does.dc.gov/page/first-source-employment-program-
https://does.dc.gov/page/first-source-employment-program-
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RFP Section Question Response 

contract, or is it reported and/or waived 
for every submitted invoice? 

61 I.15.1.1 Please provide detail list of any 
equipment designated as the property 
of the District currently in use by 
Contractor. 

A list is currently not available. 
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AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION / MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT 

1. Contract Number Page of Pages 
   CW41701 1 2 

2. Amendment/Modification Number 3. Effective Date 4. Requisition No. 5. Solicitation Caption 

     M00004   March 15, 2020  RK147007 Child Support State Disbursement Unit 
6. Issued by: Code   CB0JPW 7. Administered by (If other than line 6) 

Office of the Attorney General 
Support Services Division/Procurement Unit 
441 4th Street NW, Suite 1100 South 
Washington, DC 20001-2714 

 

Office of the Attorney General 
Child Support Services Division  
441 4th Street NW, Suite 550 North 
Washington, DC 20001-2714 

 
8. Name and Address of Contractor (No., street, city, state and zip code) 

 
System and Methods, Inc. 
106 Wedgewood Square 
Carrollton, GA  30117 
 
Attn: Karen.Middlebrooks@smimail.net; (770) 834.0831, ext. 2004 
 

 9A. Amendment of Solicitation No. 

        
 9B. Dated (See Item 11) 

      
 
 

X 

10A. Modification of Contract/Order No. 

      DCCB-2016-CW41701 
10B. Dated (See Item 13)                                                                                                                                       

March 15, 2016 
11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS 

 
The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offers   is extended.  is not extended. 
Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended, by one of the following methods: 
 (a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning _one_ copy of the amendment: (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer 
submitted; or (c) By separate letter or email which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment number(s).  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO 
BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR 
OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by letter or email, provided each letter or 
electronic communication makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified. 
12. Accounting and Appropriation Data (If required) 
               See FY20 PO622494                                                                                              

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACT/ORDERS. 
IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14. 

 A.  This change order is issued pursuant to (Specify Authority):  27 DCMR, Chapter 36, Contract Modifications 
      The changes set forth in Item 14 are made in the contract/order no. in item 10A.  

 B. The above numbered contract/order is modified to reflect the administrative changes (such as changes in paying office, appropriation data  
     etc.) set forth in item 14, pursuant to the authority of 27 DCMR, Chapter 36, Section 3601.2. 
 

X C. This supplemental agreement is entered into pursuant to authority of:   
    27 DCMR 5044, Exercising of Options, and Section F.2, Option to Extend the Term of the Contract.                                                                                                                   

 D. Other (Specify type of modification and authority) 
 

E. IMPORTANT:   Contractor     is not      is required to sign this document and return to the issuing office.  
 
14. Description of Amendment/Modification (Organized by UCF Section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter where feasible.) 

A.  The Office of the Attorney General for the District of Columbia hereby exercises its option to extend the 
term of Contract No. CW41701, pursuant to Section F.2, Option to Extend the Term of the Contract, for 
the final option year, the period March 15, 2020 through March 14, 2021. 

B.   The total amount of the Contract for the final option year is $2,780,000.00.  The rates for the Option 
Year are unchanged, as set forth in the Price Schedule on page 2. 
 

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
15A. Name and Title of Signer (Type or print) 
 
 
 

16A. Name of Contracting Officer 
 
       Janice Parker Watson 

15B. Name of Contractor 
 
 
 
 

(Signature of person authorized to sign) 

15C. Date Signed 16B. District of Columbia 
 
 
 
 

(Signature of Contracting Officer) 

16C. Date Signed 
 
    3/09/2020  
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PRICE SCHEDULE 
 

B.3.2   OPTION YEAR TWO (YEAR FIVE) – March 15, 2020 through March 14, 2021 

Contract 
Line Item 
Number 
(CLIN) 

 

 

Description of Services 

 

 

 

 

 

Unit of 
Measure 

 

 

Total 
Estimated 
Collections 
Annually 

 

 
 
 

Fixed  
Unit Price 

 

 
Total 

Extended Price 
2001 Establish and Operate the District’s 

centralized State Disbursement Unit 
(SDU) as described in Section C.5 
(Paper Collections) 

Per 
Collection 

 

143,000 $6.95 $993,850.00 

2002 Establish and Operate the District’s 
centralized State Disbursement Unit 
(SDU) as described in Section C.5 
(Automated Clearing House (ACH) 
Collections) 

Per 
Collection 

 

257,000 $6.95 $1,786,150.00 

OPTION YEAR ONE TOTAL( NOT-TO-EXCEED) 400,000  $2,780,000.00 

 
 

RECAP 
 

 
Period 

 
Term/Subject 

 
Mod 

Total Extended 
Price 

Base Period  
(3 years) 

March 15, 2016 through March 14, 2019 
 

 $8,340,000.00 

Base Period  
(3 years) 

Change of Contracting Office and Contracting 
Officer 

M00001 No Change 

Base Period  
(3 years) 

Supplemental Agreement  to incorporate IRS 
Safeguarding Requirements 

M00002 No Change 

Option  
Period One  
(Year 4) 

March 15, 2019 through March 14, 2020 M00003 $2,780,000.00 

Option  
Period Two  
(Year 5) 

March 15, 2020 through March 14, 2021 M00004 $2,780,000.00 

TOTAL NOT-TO-EXCEED PRICE: $13,900,000.00 

 
 



 
AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION / MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT 

1. Contract Number Page of Pages 
   CW41701 1 2 

2. Amendment/Modification Number 3. Effective Date 4. Requisition No. 5. Solicitation Caption 

     M00005   September 1, 2020  RK147007 Child Support State Disbursement Unit 
6. Issued by: Code   CB0JPW 7. Administered by (If other than line 6) 

Office of the Attorney General 
Support Services Division/Procurement Unit 
441 4th Street NW, Suite 1100 South 
Washington, DC 20001-2714 

Office of the Attorney General 
Child Support Services Division  
441 4th Street NW, Suite 550 North 
Washington, DC 20001-2714 

8. Name and Address of Contractor (No., street, city, state and zip code) 
 
System and Methods, Inc. 
106 Wedgewood Square 
Carrollton, GA  30117 
 
Attn: Karen.Middlebrooks@smimail.net; (770) 834.0831, ext. 2004 
 

 9A. Amendment of Solicitation No. 

        
 9B. Dated (See Item 11) 

      
 

X 
10A. Modification of Contract/Order No. 

      DCCB-2016-CW41701 
10B. Dated (See Item 13)                                                                                                                                       

March 15, 2016 
11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS 

The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offers   is extended.  is not extended. 
Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended, by one of the following methods: 
 (a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning _one_ copy of the amendment: (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer 
submitted; or (c) By separate letter or email which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment number(s).  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
TO BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF 
YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by letter or email, provided each 
letter or electronic communication makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified. 
12. Accounting and Appropriation Data (If required) 
               See FY20 PO622494                                                                                              

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACT/ORDERS. 
IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14. 

 A.  This change order is issued pursuant to (Specify Authority):   
      The changes set forth in Item 14 are made in the contract/order no. in item 10A.  

 B. The above numbered contract/order is modified to reflect the administrative changes (such as changes in paying office, appropriation data  
     etc.) set forth in item 14, pursuant to the authority of 27 DCMR, Chapter 36, Section 3601.2.  

X C. This supplemental agreement is entered into pursuant to authority of:   
    27 DCMR 5045, Contract Modifications and mutual agreement of the parties.                                                                                                                   

 D. Other (Specify type of modification and authority) 
 

E. IMPORTANT:   Contractor     is not      is required to sign this document and return to the issuing office.  
 
14. Description of Amendment/Modification (Organized by UCF Section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter where feasible.) 

The Office of the Attorney General for the District of Columbia and Systems and Methods, Inc. hereby mutually 
agree to modify Contract No. CW41701 to add a process by which paper payments received by CSSD will be 
transmitted to the Contractor for processing.  The Contractor’s proposed solution outlined in the Client Change 
Request Form dated May 8, 2020 is accepted and hereby incorporated into the contract by reference.  Accordingly, 
the following changes are made to the contract terms:   

A. Section C.5.1.1.2.3 is added to read as follows:   

If checks are received at CSSD, CSSD staff will scan the check and any supporting documentation to 
the Contractor so that the Contractor can process the payment. The Contractor shall process the 
scanned payment in accordance with section C.5.1.1 Mail (Paper) Payment. 

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
15A. Name and Title of Signer (Type or print) 
 
 
 

16A. Name of Contracting Officer 
 
       Janice Parker Watson 

15B. Name of Contractor 
 
 
 
 

(Signature of person authorized to sign) 

15C. Date Signed 16B. District of Columbia 
 
 
 
 

(Signature of Contracting Officer) 

16C. Date Signed 
 
     7/31/2020

Joe Stone, CEO

  7/31/2020

mailto:Bilinda.McKay@smimail.net
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B. Section C.3.2.2.3 Electronic Payment Alternatives (Other) is revised to read as follows: 
 

The Contractor shall provide, implement, and maintain other electronic payment alternatives or 
technology to simplify the collection process, achieve greater efficiency, and provide savings to 
the District.  

 
a. Ability to receive and identify payments locally via electronic transfer of financial 

instruments and documentation from CSSD for processing. 
 
C.   There is no change to the contract price as a result of this modification. 

 
 
 
 

RECAP 
 

 
Period 

 
Term/Subject 

 
Mod 

Total Extended 
Price 

Base Period  
(3 years) 

March 15, 2016 through March 14, 2019 
 

 $8,340,000.00 

Base Period  
(3 years) 

Change of Contracting Office and Contracting 
Officer 

M00001 No Change 

Base Period  
(3 years) 

Supplemental Agreement to incorporate IRS 
Safeguarding Requirements 

M00002 No Change 

Option  
Period One  
(Year 4) 

March 15, 2019 through March 14, 2020 M00003 $2,780,000.00 

Option  
Period Two  
(Year 5) 

March 15, 2020 through March 14, 2021 M00004 $2,780,000.00 

Option Period 
Two (Year 5) 

Supplemental Agreement to incorporate process to 
transmit checks received at CSSD to the Contractor 
for processing 

M00005 No Change 

TOTAL NOT-TO-EXCEED PRICE: $13,900,000.00 
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